VPOP3 Your email post office



Getting Started Guide



Copyright Statement

This manual is proprietary information of Paul Smith Computer Services and is not to be copied, reproduced, lent of disposed of, nor used for any purpose other than that for which it is specifically provided without the written permission of Paul Smith Computer Services.

The software described in this document is supplied under a licence and may be used and copied only under the terms of such licence, and in particular any warranty of fitness of Paul Smith Computer Services' software products for any particular purpose is expressly excluded and in no event will Paul Smith Computer Services be liable for any consequential loss.

Because of the nature of this material, hardware and software products may be mentioned by name. In most, if not all, cases, these product names are claimed as trademarks by the companies that manufacture the products. It is not our intention to claim these names or trademarks as our own.

All rights reserved. V6.9 document release 2.1

Copyright © 2014 Paul Smith Computer Services

Contents

1 Welcome to VPOP3 1.1 About this Guide	
1.2 Contents of this Guide	
1.3 Pre-requisites	
1.4 System Requirements	5
1.5 Getting Help	6
2 Installation	7
2.1 Setting up the network	7
2.2 Choosing the VPOP3 Server	7
2.3 Installing VPOP3	7
2.4 The VPOP3 Status Monitor	14
2.5 Logging On	16
2.6 Configuring VPOP3	17
2.7 Register VPOP3	22
2.8 Uninstalling VPOP3	23
3 Defining Users	24
4 Specifying Connections	26
5 Retrieving Mail	27
6 Sending Mail	28
7 Email Client Software	29
8 Other Settings	30
8.1 Local Mail Settings	
8.2 Scheduled Connections	

1 Welcome to VPOP3

VPOP3 is a POP3, IMAP4¹ and SMTP email server as well as supporting shared CalDAV calendars². It acts as the interface between your many email users and the Internet. It can work with POP3 or SMTP email accounts with your ISP, or even by receiving and sending mail directly, without your ISP's mail servers being involved at all (in most cases). By specifying rules you can determine how received mail is distributed to the intended recipients. VPOP3 also stores and forwards outgoing messages to your ISP's SMTP mail server.

A full description of VPOP3's many features is provided in the online help text.

1.1 About this Guide

The aim of this guide is to help you to get VPOP3 running quickly and efficiently. To do this, it goes through the steps necessary to install and set up a basic system.

This guide **does not** describe the more complex and advanced features of VPOP3. However, extensive documentation is provided as online help text that you can view and print. That documentation gives comprehensive information about VPOP3's many features.

The *Getting Started Guide* provides only enough information to achieve a basic set up. However, it may refer you to additional details in the help text. In these cases, an icon and cross-reference are given.

Ľ

Note that this guide refers to a normal business licence for the VPOP3 Standard software. If you have a Home User licence, extra restrictions may apply.

1.2 Contents of this Guide

You should read this guide before you attempt to install and use VPOP3. It provides essential information for installation and set-up, and has contact details in case you have problems.

Since this is only a small document, you can read all chapters in sequence. You can also look at specific topics by reference to the table of contents and index.

Further chapters in this guide tell you how to:

- o Install the software
- o Define the users who can send and receive mail
- o Connect VPOP3 to the Internet
- o Retrieve and send mail
- o Link VPOP3 to your email client software
- o M7ake other settings that allow VPOP3 to work efficiently.

1.3 Pre-requisites

Neither this guide nor any other of the VPOP3 documentation describes basic input and processing techniques. It is assumed that you are familiar with keyboard and mouse use, and have some knowledge of Windows, email processing, and PC operation in general.

If you need more information in these areas, refer to the online and printed documentation that is provided with the appropriate equipment and software applications.

¹ VPOP3 Basic does not support IMAP4

² VPOP3 Basic supports individual calendars using CalDAV, but not shared calendars.

1.4 System Requirements

Before installing VPOP3, ensure that the PC on which it is to be installed meets the following basic requirements:

- Internet connectivity, either over a local area network (LAN) or by using dial-up networking (RAS/DUN)
- The operating system must be Windows XP or later. It does not need to be a 'Server' version of Windows. VPOP3 will run perfectly well on Windows XP, Vista, Windows 7, Windows 8 or Windows 8.1 as well as Windows 2003, 2008, 2008R2, 2012, 2012R2. (Note that the network user limits of Windows XP, Vista, 7 and 8.x only apply to file sharing, not to programs like VPOP3).
- o A static IP address on the LAN (although a dynamic Internet address is permitted)
- o At least a Pentium 4 processor running at a minimum 1GHz and with 1GB of memory. (A multi-core processor with 2GB RAM is recommended)
- o 200MB of free disk space (for working files). Extra space will be needed for email storage
- The VPOP3 computer should be left turned on at any time when you will need to send/receive email. For this reason it is often not suitable for it to be a user's PC in case the user turns it off.

VPOP3 needs to be installed on a single machine per LAN. If VPOP3 is to be accessed from email client software on other machines, then these machines:

- o Need to be connected to the VPOP3 server with a TCP/IP network
- o Can run any operating system that supports TCP/IP networking.
- Need a standard POP3/SMTP email client, such as Microsoft Outlook Express, Mozilla Thunderbird etc.

1.5 Getting Help

Besides this *Getting Started Guide*, extensive documentation is available once you have installed VPOP3. You can access this documentation as follows:

o Access the online manual at http://www.pscs.co.uk/manual/index.html

o There is also a searchable knowledgebase of common questions, troubleshooting and other helpful advice at http://wiki.pscs.co.uk

If you have a problem that you cannot resolve through the documentation, you can contact the VPOP3 technical support team online at **http://support.pscs.co.uk** (this requires an active maintenance or priority support agreement – 1 year's maintenance is included with every new VPOP3 purchase).

NOTE:	Telephone support is also provided on 01484 855800 , but this is a
	chargeable service unless you have a priority support agreement.

More details on the support options are available online at http://www.pscs.co.uk/helpdesk/purchase.php

2 Installation

Before installing VPOP3 on your network, you must first ensure that the network is set up correctly and that the server is suitable.

2.1 Setting up the network

If you are installing VPOP3 for an existing network, it is quite possible that the network is correctly configured. The main aim is to ensure that the network, and all machines that will receive mail from VPOP3, support TCP/IP (the protocol used on the Internet).

Each machine on the network must also have a unique IP address.

Contact your network administrator or IT support company if you are not sure about setting up a network.

2.2 Choosing the VPOP3 Server

One machine on the network will be the VPOP3 server. You must select a machine that is suitable for the task. It does not have to be a "Server" version of Windows, but throughout this document, the computer on which VPOP3 is running will be referred to as the "server" or "VPOP3 server".

The requirements for the server are listed at "System Requirements" (section 1.4 of this document).

2.3 Installing VPOP3

Ø

The remaining steps are the same whether you are installing VPOP3 to a standalone PC or to a server on a network. First you need to download the installation program from the PSCS website at: http://www.pscs.co.uk/downloads/vpop3.php

During installation, usually you can just click on the 'Next' button to go through all the installation pages, using the default options, but more details are below in case you need them.

- 1. Double-click on the installation file.
- At the start of the installation process, the installer may need to install some Microsoft Visual C++ Redistributable files. If it prompts to do so, just click OK to install them. Note that these may have already been installed for other software on the PC, so don't be surprised if you do not have to install them again.
- 3. Click **Next** at the 'Welcome' screen, and choose **I agree to the terms of this license agreement** if you accept the displayed licence details and press **Next** again.
- 4. You must then choose where VPOP3 is to be installed:

VPOP3 Mail Server Setup	×
Installation Folder Where would you like VPOP3 Mail Server to be installed?	
The software will be installed in the folder listed below. To select a different location, either type i new path, or click Change to browse for an existing folder.	in a
Install VPOP3 Mail Server to:	
c:\vpop3 Change.	
Space required: 21.6 MB Space available on selected drive: 66.42 GB	
< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > <u>C</u> ancel	

Change the default setting if it is not appropriate but ensure that any folder that you choose:

- o Has long file name support.
- o Is not visible to all users on the network.

VPOP3 stores mailbox data in a database system, which is by default in subdirectories under the installation directory, so it is best to make sure there is sufficient free disk space to store your expected mail volume. It is not recommended to install VPOP3 into a "Program Files" folder, especially on Windows Vista or later, because Windows restricts the use of these folders for data storage, which can cause issues with VPOP3.

5. Select to install the components that are applicable to your operating system:

🎭 VPOP3 Mail Server Setup	×
Select Packages Please select the program features that you want to install.	4
Program Features: Image: Optional Extras Image: Optional Extras <td></td>	
< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > <u>C</u> ancel	

The components that are relevant to your system are generally selected by default. You will not normally change these selections.

If this is a fresh installation, then evaluation versions of "VPOP3 Antivirus" and the VPOP3 Spam Filter subscription will be installed by default. These evaluations last 30 days, and can be disabled at any point. If you wish to continue using these options after 30 days, then subscriptions will need to be purchased at extra cost. These can be purchased through our website.

You should normally install the **Database Server for VPOP3** component, as this is required by VPOP3. The only time when you would not want to do this is if you have installed the database service (PostgreSQL 9.1 or later) separately, either on this PC or another PC and you want VPOP3 to use that. That is an advanced usage, so it not covered by this guide.

6. Enter VPOP3 Licence Details if you have them

VPOP3 Mail Server Setup	×
Licence Details Please enter your VPOP3 (v5 or later) licence details	
If you are evaluating VPOP3, you can leave the boxes blank, and simply press "Next"	
Licence Owner :	
Licence Key :	
	^
	~
< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > <u>C</u> ancel	

If you leave the boxes blank the installer will generate a 100 user, 30 day evaluation licence for you. (Note that if you have previously used a VPOP3 evaluation licence on this computer, that licence will be continued, you will not get a further 30 day evaluation period).

If you have purchased a VPOP3 licence, then enter both the **Licence Owner** and **Licence Key** values you have been provided with. The installer will check online that your licence is valid for this version of VPOP3 and allow you to continue if it is.

7. If you left the licence key fields blank, the installer will ask whether you want to install the Basic or Enterprise edition of VPOP3. If you entered licence details, then the installer will pick the appropriate edition for your licence.

5	VPO	P3 Mail Serve	er Setup	×
Choose the VP	OP3 edition to ins	stall		1.
VPOP3 Basic is o featured product SSL/TLS suppor the differences. VPOP3 Ente VPOP3 Basi	our basic product with with features such a t, message recycle bi erprise c./Home User	h POP3/SMTP/We s shared mailboxes in and more. Press	ebmail support. VPOP3 using IMAP4, shared of the Help button for mo	Enterprise is our full CalDAV calendars, ore information on
<u>H</u> elp		< <u>B</u> ack	<u>N</u> ext >	<u>C</u> ancel

We recommend choosing VPOP3 Enterprise because it is full featured. You can press the Help button on this page for more information on the features which VPOP3 Enterprise includes which aren't in VPOP3 Basic.

If you change your mind later, you can simply reinstall VPOP3 over the top (without uninstalling first) to change the edition, but keep your settings, users etc.

8. Next you will choose the installation mode

VPOP3 Mail Server Setup
Installation Mode Select an option and click Next to continue.
 Please select the installation mode: Fresh installation Version or edition upgrade Restore backup - Experimental (backup must be from v5 or later) Move from another computer/path - Experimental (other computer must be running v5 or later)
If you want to restore a backup, or move an installation, of a version of VPOP3 prior to version 5, then see our online knowledgebase at http://wiki.pscs.co.uk
< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > <u>C</u> ancel

For the purpose of this guide we will assume that it is a fresh installation, so choose that option and press **Next**. The other options offer extra help if you are upgrading VPOP3, or moving VPOP3 to a new computer or restoring from a backup.

9. If this is a fresh installation and VPOP3 cannot detect an existing user database, it will ask you to create the initial user, who will also be the initial administrator.

5 V	POP3 Mail Server Setup	×
Administrator User Specify initial administrator user	to a	
This looks like a new installation. Please specify the initial usemame VPOP3 installation. Usemame:	& password for the first administrator to be created in your	
Postmaster Password:		
admin		
Please make sure you remember t	hese login details, as you will need them later!	
<u>H</u> elp	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > <u>C</u> ancel	

The default username it uses is 'postmaster', and the default password is 'admin'. For security reasons, we recommend that you change these from the defaults, either now, or soon after installation. If you do change the user account details, *make sure you remember them*. You will need the account details to log into the VPOP3 settings later! Press **Next** when you are ready.

10. VPOP3 is now ready to install.

😓 VPOP3 Mail Server Setup
Ready to Install You are now ready to install VPOP3 Mail Server 6.9
The installer now has enough information to install VPOP3 Mail Server on your computer.
The following settings will be used:
VPOP3 Edition: VPOP3 Enterprise
Install folder: c:\vpop3
Shortcut folder: VPOP3 Mail Server
Please click Next to proceed with the installation.
< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > <u>C</u> ancel

Press the **Next** button if you have entered details correctly and want to go ahead. The installation will now take place, which may take a few minutes depending on the speed of the computer on.

11. When the installation is complete, you will be prompted to start VPOP3

3	VPOP3 Mail Server Setup	×
	Installation Successful The VPOP3 Mail Server 6.9 installation is complete. Thank you for choosing VPOP3 Mail Server! Please click Finish to exit this installer. Please note that VPOP3 may have to migrate data between databases or between data structures when it is nu after an upgrade. So, you should be prepared for server performance to be lower than normal for a while after the upgrade as the data migration takes place while VPOP3 is running.	
and a	Start VPOP3 Started Guide	
	< Back <u>Finish</u> Cancel	

Press Finish to start VPOP3

2.4 The VPOP3 Status Monitor

In the Windows task tray you should see a small red icon, like a British Postbox.



(If the icon is 'bulging' as above, that means there are messages in a user's Inbox. If there is a 'flashing light' on top of the icon, then VPOP3 is currently sending or collecting messages from the Internet).

Usually you will access VPOP3 through this icon, but if there are problems with this icon, you can access VPOP3 through menu items, such as **Start / Programs / VPOP3 / Configure VPOP3**.

This icon is displayed by a separate program called the **VPOP3 Status Monitor** (VPOP3Status.EXE). This can be run on any computer on the network to allow the VPOP3 status to be viewed from other PCs.

When the status monitor program is run the first time it may need configuring with the details of the VPOP3 server, in this case it will be shown with a black cross through it. On a fresh installation this will usually be done for you on the VPOP3 computer itself.

X

To configure the VPOP3 Status monitor, right-click the red postbox icon and choose the **Configure Status Monitor...** option:

Configure VPOP3 Monitor
The VPOP3 status monitor is a program which monitors the status of your VPOP3 server. This program can be run on the VPOP3 computer itself, or on any other computer on the network.
Server Address: the IP address of your VPOP3 server Server Port: usually 5109 User Name: the account name of a VPOP3 user (usually an administrator) Password: the VPOP3 password of the account name specified in the "User Name" box
Server Name : Server
Server
VPOP3 Server Address : 192.168.1.1
VP0P3 Server Port : 5109
VP0P3 User Name : Postmaster
VPOP3 Password : ****
Use Global Message Count instead of personal
Icon Colour : Red 💌
IM Popup : Always
Allow 'Quick Exit' when connected
OK Cancel

The **Server Address** is the IP address of the VPOP3 computer (or you can use **127.0.0.1** if the status monitor is being run on the same computer as VPOP3). The **Server Port** should usually be left at **5109**. The **User Name** and **Password** settings are the *VPOP3 Username and Password* details for the person using the status monitor – in this case the administrator's username and password.

If this is the first time you have installed VPOP3, you will have chosen the administrator's username and password during installation, and they should have been pre-entered here.

When you press **OK**, the status monitor will try to connect to the VPOP3 server, and, all being well, the black cross should disappear from the icon as it connects.

Once this has happened, to configure VPOP3 you will right-click the status monitor icon and choose **VPOP3 Settings**.

NOTE:	On Windows Vista and later, Windows may hide the VPOP3 Status Monitor icon by default, thinking it unimportant. You can click the little triangle to the left of the Windows notification area to view the icon.
	If you want Windows to show the icon permanently, then click the Customise link on the popup pane. Windows will show a list of the current notification icons, find the vpop3status icon, and choose Show icon and notifications from the drop-down box to the right of this icon, then press OK .

2.5 Logging On

Once VPOP3 and the VPOP3 Status Monitor are installed and running, the VPOP3 settings should appear in your web browser.

The settings only appear automatically just after installation. To enter the settings at a later stage, rightclick the Status Monitor icon (see section above) and choose **VPOP3 Settings** (alternatively go to **Start/Programs/VPOP3/Configure VPOP3**).

Your web browser should start up at <u>http://127.0.0.1:5108/index.html?redirect=admin/index.html</u> (the IP address may be different, depending on how the status monitor is configured). This web page is shown by VPOP3 itself, and does not require a connection to the Internet.

pop	web admin login
· Y'	VPOP3 Enterprise 6.9
Username:	
Password:	
	Remember me next time I connect (not recommended on shared computers)
	LOG ON
	Forgotten Password
Please note that J	avaScript and Cookies are required in order to log on.

Enter the username and password for the administrator. If you have just installed VPOP3 for the first time, you will have specified this username and password during the installation process. The defaults are:

Username:	postmaster
Password:	admin

	NOTE:	You must enter the password in the correct case.
--	-------	--

This logon allows access to set up and maintenance routines for VPOP3. Consequently, only users who are defined as administrators can log in here. Normal mail users can access the same address to access their **WebMail**, or use their normal email client, such as Microsoft Outlook, Mozilla Thunderbird, Windows Live Mail etc to access mail from the POP3, IMAP4³ & SMTP services in VPOP3.

³ VPOP3 Basic does not support IMAP4

2.6 Configuring VPOP3

The first time you enter the VPOP3 settings, it will ask you whether you wish to run the **Initial Setup Wizard**. If you have not configured VPOP3 before, it is recommended that you use this 'Wizard' as it will take you through the necessary steps for a basic VPOP3 configuration. Choose <u>Next</u> as you complete each one and then **Finish** at the last screen to update the details.

🕴 Users 😴 Lists 🥄 Mappin Welcome to the VPOP3 Administrator Settings	ut
User Accounts(1 of 5 L It looks like you are about to configure a new installation of VDOP3	Show Hints
It looks like you are about to coningure a new installation of veroes.	
Import users from fi Do you want to use the Initial Setup Wizard?	
Edit User Welcome	
🗌 Don't ask again	New Delete
Outgoing Message Queu No, skip setup wizard Yes, run setup wizard	Size: 0
Account Name	
0% Postmaster	
The Configuration Winord about anours that the acttings	locaribad in
The Computation wizard should ensure that the settings of	lescribed in

NOTE: The Configuration Wizard should ensure that the settings described in Chapters 4-6 of this guide are complete and correct. However, you may want to review these settings so that you understand them.

Identify Your ISP

Setup Wizard (Page 1 of 7)			
This Wizard takes you through the initial basic setup process for VPOP3.			
Please note that this only takes you through the most basic settings for VPOP3. There are many more options available from within the main settings pages. You can create multiple connection methods, email sending and collection methods, and schedules as well as user aliases, lists, etc all from within the main settings pages.			
How do you want VPOP3 to connect to the Internet?			
 LAN Connection (eg router, proxy server or firewall) Dial-up Connection (RAS, modem) 			
 Import settings from Use settings for ISP Alltel Manual setup 			
<< Back Next >> Cancel			
Please note - imported settings are not guaranteed to be correct, please check them yourself.			
The ISPs listed on this page are not <i>recommended</i> ISPs, they are simply the ISPs whose details we know. They are typically no better or worse than other ISPs who may not be listed. If you know the details of an ISP which is not listed, email the details to support@pscs.co.uk and we will be pleased to add it to the next release of VPOP3.			

The first page of the wizard lets you specify whether VPOP3 will connect to the Internet through a network connection, or a dial-up connection.

It also lets you specify whether it should import settings from an email client on that PC. The **Import** settings from box will show any email programs which VPOP3 recognises and can import settings from. You can also use settings for some Internet providers (ISPs) VPOP3 knows about. If your ISP is not listed there, simply choose the **Manual setup** option.

All the settings pages are the same, regardless of which option you choose here, but if you choose to import settings, or use known settings, the relevant settings will be filled in for you on the subsequent pages. You can change the settings later if you wish.

For the purpose of this guide we will assume a network connection to a simple manually configured ISP.

NOTE:	NOTE: If you are unsure of any of the required details, check with your ISP.			
	Setup Wizard (Page 2 of 7)			
	You have specified that VPOP3 will connect over a LAN connection. In this case VPOP3 doesn't need to know any more about the connection. Make sure that the Windows networking Default Gateway and DNS Servers are set correctly. These may be set automatically by your router, or may need manual configuration in the Windows networking settings.			
	If you want to change this setting in the future use the Mail Connectors -> Connections page			

What is the name of your ISP?	My ISP			
		 << Back	Next >>	Cancel

On the second page you simply enter the name of your ISP. VPOP3 names the connection and email collection and sending methods with this name for your reference.

Outgoing Mail Details

Setup Wizard (Page 3 of 7)

Configure the method VPOP3 uses for sending outgoing mail

If you want to change this setting in the future use the Mail Connectors -> Senders page

How do you want VPOP3 ③ via your ISP's SMTP relay server (or 'SmartHost'). Choose to send outgoing mail : this option if your ISP have told you a mail server for sending outgoing mail O Directly to the recipient's mail server. Choose this option if your ISP do not have a relay server you can use. We do not recommend this option if you use a dial-up connection, or if you have a dynamic IP address assigned by your ISP.

SMTP Relay Settings

SMTP Relay Servers:	smtp.isp.com	
SMTP Authentication		
	This server requires SMTP a	uthentication
SMTP Username:	username	
SMTP Password:	•••••	
		< Back Next >> Cancel

On this wizard page you enter the details your ISP have given you for sending outgoing email. For most people we recommend you choose the 'via your ISP's SMTP relay server' option and enter your ISP's outgoing mail details.

The "Directly to the recipient's mail server" option can cause mail to be treated as spam by some receiving mail server if your Internet account does not have a suitable IP address associated with it.

Incoming Mail Details

Setup Wizard (Page 4 of 7)

Configure the method VPOP3 uses for collecting incoming mail

If you want to change this setting in the future use the Mail Connectors -> Collectors page

How do you want VPOP3 to collect	
incoming mail: From an ISP's POP3 email account.	~
incoming man.	

Incoming POP3 Settings

This option makes VPOP3 retrieve messages from a POP3 mail server at your ISP.

POP3 Server Address :	pop3.isp.com
POP3 Authentication Method :	Plain Text 💌
	(make sure the POP3 server supports the selected method)
POP3 Account Username :	username
POP3 Account Password :	•••••
Routing Method :	Parse message headers (for shared mailboxes)

The Accepted Domains setting tells VPOP3 which email domains or addresses to expect in this POP3 account. Separate multiple entries with';' (semicolon) characters. (An asterisk (*) can be used in place of the POP3 account username)

Accepted Domains : mydomain.com			
	<< Back	Next >>	Cancel

On this wizard page you tell VPOP3 how to retrieve incoming mail, and how to handle it. For the purpose of this guide we will assume the most common situation where incoming mail is downloaded from a POP3 mailbox at your ISP. The page options will change if you choose one of the other mail collection methods.

The **Accepted Domains** option tells VPOP3 which email addresses it should pay attention to. When VPOP3 downloads mail from a shared POP3 mailbox, it has to parse the message headers to work out who the message is for, so it has to know which addresses to look at, and to ignore any others. If you have a registered domain, you will simply put that domain name (without any preceding '@' symbol) in the Accepted Domains box.

For a shared mailbox at your ISP you should choose the **Parse message headers** routing method. If you have individual mailboxes at your ISP, choose the **All messages to a single user** routing method, and choose the appropriate user to send mail from this ISP mailbox to.

Local Mail

Setup Wizard (Page 5 of 7)

Configure what email VPOP3 treats as local mail

If you want to change this setting in the future use the Settings -> Local Mail page

Specify the email domain(s) which are to be handled locally (usually this is your normal email domain).

Local Domains :	mydomain.com		
	(separate multiple domains with s	semicolons)	
	<< Back	Next >>	Cancel

VPOP3 will send mail for other local users directly to that user, without the mail going out to your ISP and then back in again. This wizard page lets you tell VPOP3 which email domains will be treated as local mail. If you have a registered domain, simply put that domain name (without any preceding '@' symbol) in the text box.

Connection Schedule

Setup Wizard (Page 6 of 7)

Configure how often VPOP3 collects and sends email

This page lists several common options for the connection schedule. Please choose the most appropriate one for your situation. Note that connection schedules are highly customisable from the **Mail Connectors -> Schedule** page later.

At what times do you want VPOP3 to automatically collect/send email :	 Never During working hours 24 hours a day
On what days do you want VPOP3 to collect/send email :	Weekdays only
	Weekends only
	🔿 All days
How often do you want VPOP3 to collect/send email :	• Every 10 minutes
concer bend entail .	Every hour
	O Every 2 hours
	Cancel

This wizard page let you specify how often, and when VPOP3 will connect to your ISP to collect/send email. You can change this later, or give more specific settings if you wish from the **Mail Connectors** \rightarrow **Schedule** settings page.

Finishing the wizard

Setup Wizard (Page 7 of 7)

Next Steps

This basic configuration will be created when you press the **Finish** button. Then, you will have to set up other things, such as creating any new **Users**, creating **Mappings** (or 'aliases') for those users, and modifying any of the new configuration that you have just made.

- To create users, go to Users, and press New. If you have lots of users to add, you may be better to go to Users and then pressing Bulk Add Users
- If you want users to have different email addresses (eg if you want Fred to also have the email address Sales), do this by going to Mappings and press New
 If you want to set up extra mail collection methods, go to Mail Connectors, and press New
- If you want to set up extra mail collection methods, go to Mail Connectors, and press New Mail Collector

You should also go to the **Schedule** page, and enable the scheduling once you have the rest of the settings set to your requirements.



You have now entered all the settings. When you press the **Finish** button, all the settings you have entered will be configured into VPOP3. This page also tells you that you need to do two further things to finish your configuration. (Depending on your exact requirements, you may need to do more, but we can't cover all eventualities in this guide).

First, you need to define users. See chapter 3 for details.

Then, you need to enable the scheduler in VPOP3 by going to **Mail Connectors** \rightarrow **Scheduling** and clicking **Click here to resume scheduling**. This is disabled initially to prevent VPOP3 from downloading messages before it is fully configured.

2.7 Register VPOP3

VPOP3 is available for a free 30 day evaluation period. If, during this time, you decide to purchase the product, you will need to register your licensed copy of VPOP3.

Purchase of a licence includes 1 year's software maintenance giving you access to email technical support and version upgrades for a year. After this year you can choose to renew the software maintenance if you wish for a small fee (25% of the full licence price) or let it lapse. The software will continue working without renewing the software maintenance, but you cannot get email technical support or version upgrades without paying extra. The self-service support resources are still available.

After logging on, choose the About page in the VPOP3 settings:

Licence I	ormation
Licenced To: Evaluation Maximum Users: 100 Expiry Date: 26 Sep, 2014 SMS Licence: SMS PAYG Licence not Entered NNTP Service: Not registered Spamfilter: Not Licenced VPOP3 Antivirus: Not Licenced Licence Activation: Licence activation succeeded Check/change	Licence Details
Support Information: This software was suppled by Paul Smith Computer Services For support: • Go to http://support.vpop3.com	News Reduced technical support availability (28 Jay 2014) From 24th Jay, and Jard August, and then from 7th until 10th August there will be reduced technical support availability due VPDPD9 V6.9 released (18 Jay 2014) from the filter ways sets of the support of the support of the support of the support availability due Background log writer (18 Jay 2014) Background log writer (18 Jay 2014) The diagnotic to gifter with VPOP3 generates can add a lot of extra disk load to a VPOP3 server. For this reason, VPOP3 Free Weithings / John 2014)
Credits for portions of the software • Lus 5.2 Copyright © 1994-2013 Lus org, PUC-Rio, • Portions of this product year created using LEADTOOLS © 1991-2001, LEAD Techny	We are planning on holding some Webnars /online training events for VPDP3 users and partners. These will be free, but Subscribe to updates by ema see more Subscribe to updates by ema ologies, Inc. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

Click the Check/change Licence Details button to enter your details:

Set VPOP3 Licence Details	
Close	Submit
Licence Owner : Evaluation	
Licence Key :	
Optional Keys	
SMS Licence :	
NNTP Key :	
Check For Upgraded Licence	

You must enter the **Licence Owner** and **Licence Key** details exactly as they are supplied to you. They will be checked when you have entered them, to ensure they are valid for this version of VPOP3. When they are entered and validated, press the **Submit** button to save them, and the **Close** button to close this screen.



The **SMS Licence** should be left blank unless you have purchased credit for our email-to-SMS gateway service. The **NNTP Key** should be left blank unless you have also purchased an NNTP service licence. This allows VPOP3 to download NNTP/Usenet/newsgroup messages and publish them to your local users.

2.8 Uninstalling VPOP3

You may remove all the VPOP3 components with the Uninstall utility. From the **Start** menu, choose **Programs**, **VPOP3** and then **Uninstall VPOP3**. Note that we do not recommend doing an 'uninstall and then reinstall' to fix problems with VPOP3. Uninstalling will remove all settings, users, messages etc. In general, uninstalling VPOP3 should only be done if you do not want to use VPOP3 on this computer any more. Note that to prevent wanted files being deleted, the uninstall process may not delete all files related to VPOP3, such as custom scripts. After the undelete process, you can manually delete the VPOP3 installation directory and contents once you are sure there is nothing in there that you want to keep.

3 Defining Users

When VPOP3 is first installed, only a single user (usually 'postmaster') exists. You must add details of all other users who need to send and receive mail.

In the VPOP3 Configuration, select the Users page. All existing users are listed:



The symbols against an entry identify certain attributes of the user. For instance a magic wand indicates that the user has an autoresponder, a red key indicates that the user is a VPOP3 administrator and a blue arrow indicates that the user has email forwarding configured.

Click the **New** button to create a user account, this will take you to the **Add User** screen:

Add User		Show Hints
Please enter the us and 32 characters lo characters. It should	ername for the user you wish to add. This userna ng and can contain numbers, letters, or the perio I NOTcontain spaces or the @ symbol.	ame must be between 1 od, underscore or hyphen
Usually the usernan symbol. Eg, if you ha simplest if you set th	e for a person is used as the part of their email we a person whose email address you wish to be heir username to be <i>james</i> .	address before the @ e james@company.com, it i
People can be assig user. In this case it <i>james@company.com</i> his username, and t Username:	ned multiple email addresses by using Mappings s often best to use their 'main' name or their' pen rould also be addressed as sales ^c ompany.com nen create a Mapping to make sales into an alias	to define 'aliases' for that rsonal' name. Eg, if ŋ, it is best to use <i>james</i> a for <i>james.</i>
Password:	* @	
Confirm Password:	*	
You can enter a sho entirely optional.	t (up to 80 characters) comment about this user	account below - this is
Comments:		
Copy settings from:	<none></none>	
	Send Welcome message to new user	
	Cancel Add User	

The basic information you **must** enter for a user is as follows:

<u>U</u> ser Id	to identify the person as a VPOP3 user. Enter the name without spaces.
<u>P</u> assword	which must also be used when logging on to read mail, or to change settings if an administrator.

After entering these details press **Add User** to create the new user account. Note that a many more settings can be defined for the users after creation by clicking on the user account in the **Users** list.

The **Comments** optional setting lets you define an administrator comment for the user, for your future reference.

The **Copy settings from** option lets you copy all the settings from another user. This is useful if you want to create users the same as other users, except for their username & passwords.

The **Send Welcome message to new user** box lets you send a welcome email message to the new user (for instance, containing email terms & conditions). This can be customised from the main **Users** page.

4 Specifying Connections

NOTE:

If you have used the 'Initial Setup Wizard', then you will probably not need to change any of the settings described in this or the following three chapters since they should be correct. However, you may want to review the settings as this will help you to understand them.

You must identify one or more methods that determine how VPOP3 connects to the Internet. To do this, select the **Mail Connectors** page in the VPOP3 settings, then look at the **Connections**. (Everything to do with VPOP3 sending and receiving mail to external users is accessible through the **Mail Connectors** page and subpages).



A maximum of ten connections is possible⁴. You will normally have one connection for each ISP that you use to connect to the Internet. You can also specify **Mail Sender** and **Mail Collector** configurations to tell VPOP3 how to send and receive email to and from people outside your local network. When you connect to the specified ISP, VPOP3 will send and receive mail in the same operation.

It is possible to have:

- o The same ISP specified through separate connections with different connection methods
- o Mail Collector and Mail Sender configurations linked to separate connections
- o A Mail Collector configuration linked to several connections so that mail is collected through each one
- o A connection for each Mail Sender configuration.

NOTE:	Although each Mail Sender has only a single Connection, all	
	Connections may have several Mail Collectors attached and similarly	
	each Mail Collector may be attached to several Connections.	

To add a new **Connection** (up to the maximum of ten), you press the **Add New** item in the Connections part of the tree on the left of the page, or to edit an existing **Connection**, you click on the **Connection** name.

When adding a new **Connection**, you will also configure the associated **Mail Sender** configuration at the same time. These are configured through the **Add Connection** wizard which displays relevant instructions during use.

⁴ The Home User Licence is limited to a single Connection/Sender

5 Retrieving Mail

Here you will tell VPOP3 how to get mail from your ISP, via one or more of the connections you have set up previously. Choose the **Mail Connectors** page in the VPOP3 settings, then look at the **Mail Collectors**.



You can create as many Mail Collector configurations as you need⁵. You may have many email accounts at several ISPs.

To create a new **Mail Collector** click on the **Add New** item in the **Mail Collectors** tree, to edit an existing configuration click on the **Mail Collector** setting name.

You will add a new **Mail Collector** using the **Add Mail Collector** wizard which contains detailed instructions for each step. You will need to know the email account details supplied by your ISP.

⁵ The Home User licence is limited to 5 Mail Collectors

6 Sending Mail

In the same way that you tell VPOP3 how to get mail from your ISP, you must also define how external mail that your users create is to be sent to the ISP for distribution. Each of these methods is via one of the **Connections** that you have set up previously and so identifies the ISP, connection method and so on. Choose the **Mail Connectors** page in the VPOP3 settings, then look at the **Mail Senders**.



If you add a new **Mail Sender**, you will also add a new **Connection**, as each **Mail Sender** has an associated **Connection**, and vice-versa

To modify a Mail Sender click on the sender Name.

7 Email Client Software

You will have application software (such as Microsoft Outlook, Microsoft Outlook Express, Mozilla Thunderbird or eM Client) that you use to compose and read email messages. Prior to installing VPOP3, this software will handle the connection to your ISP to send and retrieve mail. Once VPOP3 is set up, however, you should configure the email client software to connect to VPOP3 rather than to the ISP, so that VPOP3 will in future handle the connection.

NOTE:

Configuration is necessary for every user that is to send or receive mail via VPOP3.



This set up is processed through your email client software rather than VPOP3, and so varies depending on the application you use. Refer to 'Email Configuration' in our Knowledgebase (https://wiki.pscs.co.uk/how_to:how_to#email_client_configuration) for more detailed information. This also gives examples for other common client applications, and similar principles apply to all those that work with POP3 and SMTP email.

8 Other Settings

Previous chapters cover the main steps for installing and setting up VPOP3. It is now ready to retrieve and send mail through specified ISPs. However, there are other basic tasks that will make VPOP3 operate better.

8.1 Local Mail Settings

The **Mail Senders** and **Mail Collectors** cover email from and to locations outside your organisation. However, you should also configure VPOP3 so that messages can be sent **between** your local users.

Select the Settings \rightarrow Local Mail \rightarrow General page in the VPOP3 settings.



You must specify the following:

Default Domain	This domain name is added to the sender email address for messages that VPOP3 itself sends, such as delivery failure reports and delivery receipts. This must be a single Internet domain name.
Local Domains	This setting lists your company's email domains, separated by semicolons. VPOP3 treats these domains as local for the purposes of routing mail.
Treat Locally sent mail for unrecognised local recipients as outgoing mail	You should use this option if you have some email addresses on your 'Local Domains' which are not handled by VPOP3.

8.2 Scheduled Connections

Use this feature to determine when VPOP3 is to connect to your ISP to send and receive mail. You can choose to do this manually or automatically at pre-determined times.

Select the **Mail Connectors** then **Connector Schedule** page in the VPOP3 Settings. You can configure as many schedules as you wish, to cover any eventuality. Most people will just need a single schedule.



Index

Α

About this guide	. 4
Administrator	16

В

Basic	requirements	for	installation	4
	1			

С

Choose VPOP3 server	7
Client software	29
Components to install	9
Configuration wizard	26
Configure email client software	29
Connect to VPOP3	29
Connections	26
Connections, scheduled	30
Contents of guide	4
e e	

D

Define users	24
Destination directory	
Disk space available	5
Distribution of mail	
Documentation available	6
Domain	
default	

Ε

Email	
client software	29
Evaluation period	22
External mail	28

F

Free of	lisk	space	5
---------	------	-------	---

G

Getting	help		5
---------	------	--	---

Η

Help	text				6
------	------	--	--	--	---

I

Initial user	24
Installation	7
Installing VPOP3	7
Internet connectivity	5
Introduction	4
IP address	5, 7

Κ

Key	symbol	.24
-----	--------	-----

L

Licensed software	
Local area network	5
Local mail domains	
Local mail settings	
Logging on	16

Μ

Mail	
application	
local	
retrieve	
send	

Ν

Network set	up	.7	7
-------------	----	----	---

0

Operating system	5
Other settings	30
Overview	4

Ρ

Password	
Pre-requisites	4
Problem solving	6
Processor	5
Purchase VPOP3	22

R

Register VPOP3	22
Remove VPOP3	23
Retrieve mail	27

S

Scheduled connections	30
Send and receive mail	26
Send mail	28

Server	7
Specify connections	26
Support	6
System requirements	4

Т

TCP/IP	.7
Technical support	.6
Telephone support	.6

U

Uninstalling '	VPOP3	23
Users, define		24

V

VPOP3

connect to	29
generated messages	30
register	22
server	7
uninstall	23